URBANA CITY COUNCIL
REGULAR SESSION MEETING

September 6, 2022

(To be held in the Training Room on the 3" Floor of the Municipal Building)

Urbana City Council meetings will now be streamed via Facebook Live. These live streams
can be found by visiting the City Council of Urbana, Ohio Facebook page via clicking on the
link on the City Council’s website: https://www.urbanaohio.com/city-council.html

All comments must continue to be made in person. Due to this, the ability to comment on
City Council Facebook streams will be disabled.

e Call to Order
e Roll Call
e Pledge of Allegiance

e Approval of Minutes: Urbana City Council Regular Session Meeting Minutes of August 16,
2022,

e (Communications: None

e Board of Control:

1. The Board of Control recommends Council authorize a purchase order to Columbia Gas of
Ohio in the amount of $19,175.98 for the extension of a natural gas service line to the
newest ten (10) unit t-hangar at the Grimes Field Airport. This expense will be charged to
Airport Fund - Other Capital Improvement and is not in the 2022 budget, but the City is
being reimbursed by the Urbana Hangars, LL.C — Hangar Group ‘C’ owners group. (See
attached). VOTE: 3-0

S8

The Board of Control recommends Council authorize a blanket purchase order to Purvis
Brothers for $130,000.00 for fuel to be sold at Grimes Field Airport. Earlier this year,
Council approved a purchase order in the amount of $175,000.00, which due to increased
cost has been depleted. This expense will be charged to the Airport Fund and is not in the
2022 budget. VOTE: 3-0

***Footnote — Purchase Orders $2,501 - $50,000 for July 2022 (see attached)***
Citizen Comments: (In Person Only; Must Sign-in)

Ordinances and Resolutions
0Old Business:

Page 1 of 2



Third Reading: None

Second Reading: None

New Business:

First Reading:
Ordinance 4576-22: An ordinance levying special assessments for the purpose of
constructing or repairing sidewalks, curbs and gutters, and declaring an emergency.
(Requires one reading.)

Ordinance 4577-22: An ordinance levying special assessments for the purpose of
constructing or repairing sidewalks, and declaring an emergency. (Requires one reading.)

Ordinance 4578-22: An ordinance levying special assessments for the purpose of
constructing or repairing curbs, gutters, driveway approaches and appurtenances thereto on
a section of South Main Street between State Route 55 and Market Street, and on a section
of North Main Street between Court Street and Washington Avenue/Gwynne Street, and
declaring an emergency. (Requires one reading.)

Department Liaison Reports:

Miscellaneous Business:
1. Council
2. Administration
3. Council Clerk

Next Meeting: Tuesday, September 20, 2022

Adjourn

Page 2 of 2



URBANA CITY COUNCIL
REGULAR SESSION MEETING
TUESDAY, AUGUST 16, 2022

President Pro Tempore Thackery called the City of Urbana Regular Session Meeting to order at
6:00 pm. (President Hess absent)

City Staff attending: Mayor Bill Bean, Director of Administration Kerry Brugger, Director of
Law Mark Feinstein, Director of Finance Chris Boettcher, Community Development Manager
Doug Crabill, City Engineer Tyler Bumbalough, and Fire Chief Dean Ortlieb

President Pro Temp Called Roll: Ms. Jumper, absent; Mr. Scott, present; Mr. Paul, present; Ms.
Truelove, present; Mr. Thackery, present; Mrs. Collier, present; and Mrs. Bean, present.

Minutes

Mr. Paul moved to put the minutes of July 19, 2022 on the floor for discussion and possible
approval. Mr. Scott seconded.

No corrections/comments.

Voice vote on approval: all ayes; nays, none.
Motion passed 6-0

Communications

1. Clark Schaefer Hackett — Audit Management Letter
2. City of Urbana — Regular Audit for year ending December 31, 2021.

Mrs. Bean moved to put the communications on the floor for further discussion and possible
passage. Mrs. Coliier seconded.

Mr. Paul indicated that he would save his questions for miscellaneous business.
Voice vote on approval: all ayes; nays, none.
Motion passed 6-0.
Administrative Reports — Board of Control:
Board of Control Item #1 was struck from the agenda as a duplicate item.
2. The Board of Control recommends Council authorize a purchase order to the Ohio

Department of Transportation in the amount of $17,734.00 for the city’s share of
improvements of U.S. 68 to be completed by ODOT through the Urbana Resurfacing

1



Program. This amount is the city’s share of the additional amount due because the bids
received by ODOT exceeded their original estimate. This expense will be charged to the
Capital Improvement Fund and is not in the 2022 budget (see attached). VOTE: 2-0

Mr. Paul moved to put this request on the floor for further discussion and possible passage. Ms.
Truelove seconded.

Mr. Bumbalough indicated the bids came back high: 16% over the ODOT estimate. The city has
already paid its 20% of the original estimate. This amount represents the city’s share of the
overage. The resurfacing excludes the square.

No comments/questions from Council.
Voice vote on approval; all ayes, nays none.

3. The Board of Control recommends Council authorize a purchase order to LIB, Inc. in the
amount of $53,491.00 for the design of the Urbana Bike Trail Safety Improvement Project,
which will improve the bike trail crossings on North Main Street and Miami Street. The
city will be reimbursed up to $44,900.00 through a Federal Highway Administration Grant
administered by ODOT and the remaining balance, $8,591.00, will be charged to the
General Fund — Miscellaneous Non-Departmental and is not in the 2022 budget (see
attached). VOTE: 2-0

Mr. Paul moved to put this request on the floor for further discussion and possible passage. Mr.
Scott seconded.

Mr. Bumbalough indicated City obtained a grant for design money. This was the first time this
grant was available. The city wishes to put it towards the design costs for this project. The City
also applied for a safety grant through ODOT and was awarded $542,000. The construction costs
are also covered, minus a 10% match.

Mr. Paul asked if the City knew the construction costs previously. Mr. Bumbalough answered that
the costs also included engineering costs. The project is potentially installing an island and
stormwater drains.

Mr. Scott asked if the costs were more for eliminating the island. Mr. Bumbalough responded that
the costs could potentially be reduced by reducing the right of way. The City is paying extra for
the studying to theoretically lower the costs later during construction.

Mr. Thackery asked if the bids were being adjusted for inflation. Mr. Bumbalough stated the City
was seeing this issue a lot recently. The City just got ahead of increased construction costs with
the curb and gutter project, but these inflated costs are an epidemic throughout the State.

Voice vote on approval; all ayes, nays none.



In regards to the June purchase orders, Mr. Paul inquired as to the status of the fire ladder. Chief
Ortlieb indicated it had not been in service for about a year. It is closing in on 25 years old and
had hydraulic leak issues.

Mr. Paul also inquired as to the sidewalk listed. Mr. Bumbalough stated the City sent a letter to
the owners. It required approximately one hundred feet of replacement, or roughly half a block.
They will have the option to pay through their property taxes.

Mr. Thackery inquired as to what was a green channel post. Ms. Boettcher indicated it was a
standard street sign post.

Citizen Comments:

Fred Seeberg, 316 Scioto Street, spoke regarding the proposed one-way street for Lynn Street. He
stated his property would be affected and didn’t see the point.

ORDINANCES AND RESOLUTIONS

Third Reading: None
Second Reading: None

First Reading:
Resolution 2430-22: A Resolution accepting the amounts and rates as determined by the Budget
Commission and authorizing the necessary tax levies and certifying them to the County Auditor.

Mr. Paul moved to place this ordinance on the floor for discussion and possible passage. Mr. Scott
seconded.

Ms. Boettcher indicated this was the annual legislation from the Auditor that shows what real estate
taxes will generate for the City. The 2023 expectation would generate $722,800, a modest increase
from $716,900 in 2022.

No questions/comments by Council.

President Pro Tempore Thackery called for a roll call on passage: Mr. Scott, aye; Mr. Paul, aye;
Ms. Truelove, aye; Mr. Thackery, aye; Mrs. Collier, aye; and Mrs. Bean, aye.

Ordinance passes 6-0.

Resolution 2635-22: A Resolution accepting the Opioid Settlement funds, authorizing the
Director of Finance to create the OneOhio Fund, and Declaring an Emergency.

Mrs. Bean moved to place this ordinance on the floor for discussion and possible passage. Mr.
Paul seconded.



Ms. Boettcher stated the City received the 2022 allotment for the settlement. The City will receive
this same amount for the next 17 years. The City needs to pass legislation accepting distribution
and creating a fund so it doesn’t intermingle.

Mr. Feinstein added that the payout will be over 18 years due to an agreement by the Governor,
with no exact explanation why. A special fund must be created under Ohio law.

Mr. Paul asked what the strings attached were for how to spend the money.

Ms. Boettcher indicated that it must only be spent on addressing the opioid issue in Urbana, such
as Narcan purchase or EMS services.

Mr. Paul stated that he believed Narcan was previously $200 a dose. Chief Ortlieb informed
Council that currently the price is way down.

Mrs. Bean asked if it had to be spent each year or if it was allowed to accumulate. Ms. Boettcher
answered that it could accumulate for larger projects.

President Pro Tempore Thackery called for a roll call on passage: Mr. Paul, aye; Ms. Truelove,
aye; Mr. Thackery, aye; Mrs. Collier, aye; Mrs. Bean, aye; and Mr. Scott, aye.

Ordinance passes 6-0.
Department Liaison Reports:

Mr. Paul indicated he has had very ground level talks with administration about lateral transfers
within civil service. He added it will take a long time to hammer out details.

Ms. Truelove recently met with Mr. Feinstein and Zoning Officer Preston Carter. They are trying
to do something regarding condemned houses. She would potentially like a work session for
September. Council agreed to a September 27" work session, with the topics being finalized at
the September 6™ regular meeting.

Miscellaneous Business

Mrs. Bean indicated she thought the Second Quarter Staff highlights from the last meeting were
an excellent tool.

Mr. Scott asked for updates regarding the Eastview resurfacing. Mr. Bumbalough stated Dellinger
road finished milling today and paving would begin as early as Thursday. Mr. Scott also thanked
the City for cleaning 75 Wooddale Drive.

Chief Ortlieb stated the City finished the interview process and gave his recommendations to the
Director. There is currently one opening, with the potential for more in the near future.
Mr. Bumbalough stated that billing has gone out for the Main Street curb projects.

Mr. Crabill informed Council that the water main on Dellinger Road is substantially complete. He
also stated that the special meeting for next Thursday would be in regards to a proposed CRA
agreement for the ORBIS expansion project that needs to be approved by the school districts first.
The overall project would be in excess of $46 million with the potential to create 46 new positions.
The other topic would be a resolution in support of a Phoenix Ag loan application.



Mr. Paul asked about the terms of the CRA. Mr. Crabill stated it would be for 10 years at 75% for
only the new expansion.

Mr. Paul made a motion to hold a special meeting on Thursday, September 25", Mrs. Collier
seconded.
Voice vote on approval: all ayes, nays none.

Mr. Brugger appreciated the additional funding for South Main Street. It’s nice to wrap up this
project in the summer. He also stated that the tennis courts at the park have been repaired and they
are in the process of being painted.

Mayor Bean informed Council that the Chili Cookoff is scheduled for September 24" with a grand
prize of $1,000. He also informed Council that the City lost a prominent citizen with the recent
passing of Janey Ebert.

Mrs. Bean moved to adjourn. Mr. Scott seconded. Voice vote on approval: all ayes, nays none.
Motion passes 6-0.

ADJOURNED AT 6:44 p.m.
NEXT SCHEDULED MEETING
August 25, 2022, at 6:00 p.m.
Council Clerk Council President



BOC #1

Ker:x Brugger

From: franciswayneltd@aol.com

Sent: Wednesday, August 24, 2022 4:51 PM

To: Kerry Brugger; Elton Cultice; Stheukwu@nisource.com
Ce: ‘Kyle Michael’; 'Rob Pumphrey'; ‘John Faulkner'
Subject: RE: Next steps to become a Columbia Gas Customer

Thank you for the update Kerry. We will make sure we have the money into the City well beforehand. Scott
Scott D. Miller, President

Francis Wayne, Ltd. Construction Services

2117 West First Street

Springfield, Ohio 45504

Tel: 937-325-6007 Cell: 937-313-0909

Email: FrancisWayneltd@aol.com

From: Kerry Brugger <Kerry.Brugger@ci.urbana.oh.us>

Sent: Wednesday, August 24, 2022 1:07 PM

To: franciswayneltd@aol.com; Elton Cultice <Elton.Cultice@ci.urbana.oh.us>; Slheukwu@nisource.com
Cc: 'Kyle Michael' <kyle@crankitupdiesel.com>; 'Rob Pumphrey' <rts3406 @gmail.com>; 'John Faulkner'
<jfaulk99@aol.com>

Subject: RE: Next steps to become a Columbia Gas Customer

Scott,

Thank you for the follow-up. As discussed, even though it’s a “pass-thru” transaction, we need City Council approval. |
will prepare the packet for their Sept. 6™ meeting, and upon their approval, we can release a check on September
7*. Thanks again.

Kerry Brugger | 937.652.4302 | www.urbanachio.com

From: franciswayneltd@aol.com <franciswayneltd@aol.com>

Sent: Wednesday, August 24, 2022 11:11 AM

To: Kerry Brugger <Kerry.Brugger@ci.urbana.oh.us>; Elton Cultice <Elton.Cultice@ci.urbana.oh.us>;
Stheukwu@nisource.com

Cc: 'Kyle Michael' <kyle@crankitupdiesel.com>; 'Rob Pumphrey’ <rts3406@gmail.com>; 'John Faulkner'
<jfaulk99@aol.com>; FrancisWayneltd@aol.com

Subject: FW: Next steps to become a Columbia Gas Customer

Good Morning Kerry and Elton,

Please find attached the final proposal/contract as offered from Columbia Gas Company to bring natural gas onto the
airfield and service the Urbana Hangars, Hanger C project.

As | understand, the agreement will need to be signed and delivered with a check in the amount of $19,175.98. Once
this is accomplished, the work may be scheduled. Ms. Sheena is doing her best to get the installation scheduled
promptly.




I just spoke to Kyle Michael and he is prepared to draft and deliver to City of Urbana, Ohio a check in the amount of
$19,175.98 either late this week of the first part of next. John, Rob and | need to deliver our % share of this amount to
him. My check will be in the mail to him later today.

| have placed Ms. Sheena on this email thread in case you have any further questions of her. In summary, the new gas
line will be installed along the South property line of the airfield and then turn North and terminate on the South side of
the Urbana Hangars, Hangar C project. One (1) main gas meter will be installed large enough to service all ten (10)
individual tee hangars. The monthly gas bill will be issued by Columbia Gas to Urbana Hangars directly and Urbana
Hangars will pro-rate the bill among ourselves.

Thank you for allowing this gas service to move forward Kerry. If you have any questions of the Urbana Hangars
stakeholders, please feel free to reach out.

Scott D. Miller, President

Francis Wayne, Ltd. Construction Services
2117 West First Street

Springfield, Ohio 45504

Tel: 937-325-6007 Cell: 937-313-0909
Email: FrancisWayneltd@aol.com

From: CIS Billing <cis_eprograms@nisource.com>

Sent: Wednesday, August 24, 2022 8:32 AM

To: URBANA HANGER <FRANCISWAYNELTD@AOL.COM>
Subject: Next steps to become a Columbia Gas Customer

i — =

Hi URBANA HANGER,

We're happy to hear you're ready to get natural gas service! We'll be able to move
forward with the work necessary to serve your property once you complete two
simple steps.

Step 1 - Sign and Attach Contract



Step 2 - Pay $19,175.98

Your account number is: 5707980063. You'll need this number to make a payment
online.

You can also mail the contract and/or payment to Columbia Gas New Business,
P.0. Box 117, Columbus, Ohio 43272-5417.

If you have questions, please contact us at 1-800-440-6111. We look forward to
serving you!

Please do not respond to this email. The content of this message is for your information only. This email was
sent on behalf of Columbia Gas of Ohio. You are receiving it as you have provided this email address to the
company.

Copyright 2022 Columbia Gas of Ohio. All Rights Reserved
290 W. Nationwide Blvd, Columbus, OH 43215
Terms of Use



Project ID: WMS2288362 Location No; 0651 Job Order No: 22-0063654-00

Opportunity No: 244500 Sales Rep: Sheena lheukwu Deposit Required: $19,175.98

Columbia Gas

A NiSource Company

COLUMBIA GAS OF OHIO, INC,
LINE EXTENSION AGREEMENT COMMERCIAL/INDUSTRIAL

THIS AGREEMENT, entered into as of the 23 day of August 20 22 (“Effective Date"), by and between
Columbia Gas of Ohio, Inc. ("Columbia™), with offices located at 290 W Nationwide Blvd, Columbus, Ohio 43215 and
City of Urbana Ohio ("Applicant”), located at 1636 N Main St

represents the full and complete understanding between Columbia and the Applicant under which Columbia will
construct, install and/or improve certain facilities at, near, or necessary to provide natural gas service availability to
Applicant’s facility known as Urbana Hangers located in 1636 N Main St Urbana , Ohio

(the “Project” or “Project Area™), in accordance with the plans currently on file with Columbia.

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, Applicant is developing and constructing the Project and Applicant desires that natural gas
service be made available to the Project Area; and,

WHEREAS, Columbia is a natural gas utility operating within the State of Ohio and is willing to extend natural
gas service availability to the Project Area, subject to the terms and conditions below; and

WHEREAS, construction, installation, and/or improvement of facilities are necessary in order for Columbia to
make natural gas service available to the Project Area; and

WHEREAS, Applicant understands that payment shall be made by Applicant to Columbia (the "Deposit”) for
the costs of construction, installation and/or improvements of the facilities that are not deemed economically
justified at Columbia’s expense, based on a cost-benefit study using information provided by Applicant.

NOW, THEREFORE, the parties desire to enter into this Agreement subject to the terms and conditions as set
forth herein, and intending to be legally bound, do hereby agree as follows:

1. Contingent on Columbia acquiring all easements and right of ways required for the installation or
improvement of the gas distribution system necessary to provide natural gas service to the Project Area,
Columbia agrees to construct, install and/or improve certain natural gas facilities determined by Columbia
to be necessary in order to provide the requested natural gas service to Applicant (the “Facilities”).

Such work includes the extension by Columbia of its natural gas distribution main (“Main Extension™)
approximately 1000 feet to the geographic area of the Project in accordance with the plans on file
in Columbia’s office.

2. The Facilities (e.g., Main Extension, all gas pipes, services, meters, regulators and fittings up to the outlet
side of the meter) when built shall be and remain the property of Columbia. This provision shall survive
termination of this Agreement.

3. Applicant agrees to pay to Columbia $ 19.175.98 as a Deposit, prior to such time as Columbia begins
to construct, install and/or improve the Facilities. The Deposit is for Facilities which are not deemed
economically justified at Columbia’s expense, based on a cost-benefit study using information provided
by Applicant.

Revised 4/30/21 1



4. Columbia has no obligation to initiate scheduling of construction, installation and/or improvement of the
Facilities unless and until such time as the aforementioned Deposit has been paid and this Agreement
has been executed and timely returned to Columbia. Additionally, Columbia has no obligation to initiate
scheduling of construction and/or installation of any portion of the Facilities until such time as the
work will not impair the operation of Columbia’s gas distribution system or its service to its customers.
Columbia, at its discretion, may delay its performance under this Agreement and, in such event, Columbia
shall provide Applicant notice either before or after such delay occurs.

5. Refund of the Deposit will be made to Applicant in accordance with the following conditions:

i. No amount shall be refunded and no refund obligation shall exist on account of any current Columbia
customer unless otherwise determined by Columbia. The refund calculation shall take into account
residential development and commercial/industrial usage served directly from the Main Extension (ie.,
via a service line), in accordance with the methodology as set forth below. The refund calculation shall
not apply to any customer served by or from laterals or further extensions of the Main Extension.

il. Refunds will occur on an annual basis, beginning twelve months after the Effective Date of this
Agreement , for a period not to exceed seven (7) years, from the Effective Date. For customers
served under any schedule except small general service and the associated small general service
transportation rate schedules, Columbia will refund to the Applicant an amount equal to the
incremental volumes sold or transported directly from the Main Extension (i.e., via a service line, but
not through laterals or further extensions of the Main Extension), which are over and above those
volumes used to determine the portion of the distribution Main Extension to be done at Columbia’s
expense multiplied by Columbia’s applicable base rate charges. The annual volumes used to
determine the portion of distribution Main Extension to be done at Columbia’s expense are
540 Mcf. For customers served on the small general service rate schedule and associated
small general service transportation rate schedules, Columbia will refund to the Applicant an amount
equal to Columbia’s Monthly Delivery Charge multiplied by the number of months in that year that
such customer(s) were served directly off of the Main Extension.

iii. In no event shall any amount in excess of the total Deposit paid to Columbia be refunded to Applicant.
6. Termination:

i, If this Agreement is terminated for any reason prior to completion of the Facilities, Applicant shall be
responsible for all costs expended or obligated by Columbia related to the Facilities at the time of
termination, and Columbia may deduct any and all costs related to this Agreement and the cost of
Facilities that it has incurred or obligated, up to the effective date of termination, from the Deposit.
Columbia does not waive any other rights in law or equity it may have as a result of the termination
of this Agreement. No refunds, as provided for in Section 5, shall be due to Applicant in the event of a
termination pursuant to this Section 6.

ii. This Agreement shall automatically terminate upon the occurrence of any of the following events:
a. Columbia has refunded the entire amount referred to in Section 3;or
b. Seven (7) years have elapsed from the Effective Date of this Agreement; or
c. Applicant discontinues or requests the discontinuance of natural gas service to the Project; or

d. Termination of natural gas service to the Project by Columbia for Applicant’s default under this
Agreement; or

e. Termination of natural gas service to the Project by Columbia for any reason permitted under the
Columbia's Tariff, including, but not limited to, Applicant’s failure to timely pay invoices for gas
service; or

Revised 4/30/21 2



10.

n.

12,

13

Revised 4/30/21

f. Applicant refuses natural gas service to the Project; or

g. Applicant becomes insolvent; subject to applicable law institutes or has instituted against it
bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, liquidation, and/or any other debt adjustment proceedings;
or makes an assignment for the benefit of creditors.

iii. It is anticipated by the parties that Applicant will make the Project site ready for Columbia’s
construction of its Main Extension within 18 months of the Effective Date. Subject to the other
provisions of this Agreement, it is anticipated that Columbia shall begin its work hereunder within a
commercially reasonable time after Applicant has made the Project site ready for Columbia. Columbia
on 10 days written notice may terminate this Agreement if Applicant abandons the Project or fails to
timely construct or develop the Project.

Applicant agrees th_at. unless otherwise required by law or order of any governmental body having
jurisdiction over Columbia, Columbia shall not be required to pay interest, carrying charges, or any other
amounts arising out of or related to the payment made pursuant to Section 3.

No provision of this Agreement shall be binding upon either party unless both parties have executed and
exchanged fully executed copies of this Agreement within 30 days of Columbia providing this Agreement
to Applicant for execution. Unless the parties otherwise agree in writing, it is a condition precedent to the
effectiveness of this Agreement that Applicant shall pay to Columbia the Deposit at the same time as the
submittal of this Agreement or a date agreeable to both parties. Failure to make such payment may, at
Columbia'’s option, result in termination of this Agreement.

Any payment obligation of either party arising pursuant to this Agreement shall survive the termination of
this Agreement.

Applicant may not assign this Agreement without express prior written consent from Columbia.

Applicant agrees to enter into a Right of Way Agreement with Columbia in which Applicant shall grant to
Columbia all necessary easements or rights of way on property owned or controlled by Applicant at no
cost to Columbia. Applicant warrants that it is the sole fee simple owner of the Project premises and has
the necessary authority to grant any necessary easements or rights of way on said premises. Applicant
shall also use its best efforts to assist Columbia in acquiring any necessary easements or rights of way on
property owned by third parties that are not in a public street or alley. Applicant understands and agrees
that Columbia shall not be obligated to construct the Facilities and this Agreement shall be terminated at
the discretion of Columbia if: (i) Applicant fails to enter into the Right of Way Agreement with Columbia,
referenced above; or (ii) Columbia is not able to obtain such third party easements or rights of way upon
terms and conditions (including cost) mutually agreeable to Columbia and such third party property
owner(s). In the event of such termination, Applicant shall be responsible for all costs expended or
obligated by Columbia related to the Facilities at the time of termination.

The failure of either party to insist upon strict performance of any provision hereof shall not constitute

a waiver of, or estoppel against, asserting the right to require such performance in the future, nor shall a
waiver or estoppel in any one instance constitute a waiver or estoppel with respect to any other breach or
a later breach of a similar or different nature.

Columbia may suspend this Agreement and/or renegotiate the terms of this Agreement, due to
conditions beyond Columbia’s commercially reasonable control; adverse digging or soil conditions (e.g.
rock, hazardous materials, etc.); financial, labor, material and other resource constraints; or delay or
denial of necessary approvals or permits. If the parties do not reach mutual agreement on renegotiated
terms within thirty (30) days, Columbia may terminate this Agreement. In the event of such termination,
Applicant shall be responsible for all costs expended or obligated by Columbia related to the Facilities at



14.

15.

16.

the time of termination. In no event shall Columbia be liable for any lost profits, indirect, consequential,
punitive, or special damages, by reason of any services performed, or undertaken to be performed
hereunder. Columbia is not responsible for losses of any kind suffered by Applicant or any third party
resulting from work delays or cancellation, or refusal by a governmental entity to issue any necessary
permit or approval, or resulting from events beyond its reasonable control.

Applicant, at its own expense, shall (i) respond to reasonable requests to provide all necessary :
information describing the physical characteristics of the property where Columbia will be conducting

its work hereunder including surveys, site elevations, legal and other required descriptions, information
about existing conditions, sub-surface and environmental studies, reports, investigations and the like
which it may have now or in the future; (ii) mark and identify for Columbia, the correct locations of all
underground facilities (e.g., septic systems, sprinkler systems, water lines electric lines, propane tanks

and lines, etc.) owned by the Applicant and/or others at or about the property where Columbia will be
conducting its work hereunder; (iii) notify Columbia of any condition on or about the property where
Columbia will be conducting its work hereunder, of which the Applicant is aware, which could affect the
work contemplated hereunder; and (iv) cooperate with Columbia so that Columbia may complete its work
hereunder. Columbia shall not be obligated to construct and install the Main Extension or other elements
of the Facilities, and this Agreement shall be terminated at the reasonable discretion of Columbia if
Applicant fails to satisfy its obligations as set forth in this Section 14. In the event of such termination,
Applicant shall be responsible for all commercially reasonable costs expended or obligated by Columbia
at the time of termination.

This Agreement, along with Columbia’s Tariff on file with the Public Utility Commission of Ohio ("PUCO™),

as may be amended from time to time, (which is hereby incorporated by reference into this Agreement)

contains the full and complete understanding of Columbia and Applicant as to payment for the Facilities

and supersedes any prior understandings, commitments, agreements and authorizations, whether oral - i
or written, regarding the Facilities or payment therefor; no other representations or promises regarding !
the Facilities, written or oral, shall survive the execution hereof. To be effective, any modifications to this ‘
Agreement shali be in writing and duly executed by both parties. All remedies afforded in this Agreement

shall be taken and construed as cumulative, that is, in addition to every other remedy provided herein or

by law. Columbia reserves and preserves all rights under applicable law. All disputes between the parties,

questions with respect to the interpretation and construction of this Agreement and the rights and

liabilities of the parties hereunder shall be determined in accordance with the applicable laws of the State

of Ohio without regard to its conflict of laws rules. Any claim or action between the parties or arising

under or relating to this Agreement or the natural gas service provided to the Project shall be brought

and heard only in a court of competent jurisdiction located in Ohio. No provision of this Agreement ‘
shall be interpreted more or less favorably towards a party because its counsel! drafted all or a portion :
hereof. If any provision of this Agreement is found by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, such
provision shall be deemed modified so as to be no longer invalid, and all of the remaining provisions of
this Agreement shall remain in full force and effect. Headings and captions are for reference only and do
not define, interpret or limit the scope or content of this Agreement and shall be given no effect in the
interpretation of this Agreement. The recitals set forth in this Agreement are an integral part hereof and
shall have the same contractual significance as any other language contained in this Agreement. This
Agreement may be executed in counterparts, each of which counterparts, when executed and delivered
(including by facsimile, pdf, or other electronic transmission), shall be deemed an original, but all of which
together shall constitute one and the same instrument, Facsimile, electronic and pdf signatures shall be as
legally binding and considered in all manner and respects as original signatures.

If any conflict arises between the language of this Agreement and the language of Columbia’s approved
PUCO Tariffs, the language of the Tariffs shall prevail. This Agreement shall not modify any obligation of
Applicant or Columbia under the applicable and presently effective provisions of Columbia’s Tariff for
natural gas service to the Project.

Revised 4/30/21 4



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Columbia and Applicant have caused this Agreement to be duly executed by their
authorized representatives identified below, as of the Effective Date.

COLUMBIA GAS OF OHIO, INC.

Authorized Representative Applicant Authorized Representative
Signature Signature

Sheena lheukwu

Name (print) Name (print)

New Business Specialist

Title ' Title

Date Date

Revised 4/30/21



JULY 2022

PURCHASE ORDERS $2,501-550,000

PURCHASE PURCHASE BOC APPROVAL
VENDOR : ORDER DEPARTMENT : EXPLANATION :

ORDER #: AMOUNT : DATE & VOTE:
29762 |COLUSSY CHEVROLET $ 45,620.00 |[SEWER 2022 CHEVY SILVERADO 2500HD REG CAB W/ SERVICE BODY __ |BOC 7.01.2022(2)
29778 |A&B ASPHALT $ 20,000.00 |WATER ASPHALT FOR WATER MAIN REPAIRS BOC 7.06.2022(3)
29799 |EJP S 3,439.17 |STORMWATER 12" PVC 45" ELBOW, (6) CATCH BASIN CASTINGS BOC 7.06.2022(3)

ILLS W AINTENANCE SERVICE , (1) BENCH
29781  |AMAZON $  6,012.94 |POLICE & FIRE ﬂgg:ig’:fﬁ';;g?:;”oﬁmmx’f’\:‘: CE. (1) BOC 7.07.2022(3)
20779 |A&B ASPHALT S 7,500.00 |[SEWER ASPHALT FOR STREET REPAIRS BOC 7.13.2022(3)
29800 |PAR ASPHALT S 6,585.00 |WRF (2) COATS OF EMULSION ASPHALT SEALER FOR WRF DRIVE BOC 7.13.2022(3)
20801 |EIP $ 25,000.00 |WATER WATER DISTRIBUTION SUPPLIES FOR 2022 BOC 7.13.2022(3)
20802 |SNYDER HEATING & COOLING $ 5,910.00 |[ADMIN 18,000 BTU SPLIT UNIT W/ REMOVAL OF OLD SYSTEM BOC 7.13.2022(3)
29804 |BRICKER & ECKLER LLP S 7,500.00 |NON-DEPT LEGAL SERVICES REQUIRED FOR ZONING & LAND USE BOC 7.13.2022(3)
29827  |HERITAGE $ 20,000.00 |STREET JULY - DECEMBER 2022 FUEL EXPENSE BOC 7.20.2022(2)
29834  |HERITAGE $  7,500.00 [SEWER JUNE - DECEMBER 2022 FUEL EXPENSE BOC 7.20.2022(2)
29836 |SKELLEY LUMBER S 2,740.00 |FIRE CUSTOM TOP WINDOW SILLS FOR CAPTAIN'S OFFICE BOC 7.20.2022(2)
29837  |THE HPT COMPANY $ 11,200.00 |SEWER SCADA EQUIPMENT FOR VANCREST & WOODRUFF FARMS PUMP STATIONS _|BOC 7.20.2022(2)
29838 |HERITAGE $ 15,000.00 |FIRE JULY - DECEMBER 2022 FUEL EXPENSE BOC 7.27.2022(3)
29839 |HERITAGE $  9,000.00 |PARKS JULY - DECEMBER 2022 FUEL EXPENSE BOC 7.27.2022(3)
29840  |HERITAGE $ 10,000.00 |WRF JULY - DECEMBER 2022 FUEL EXPENSE BOC 7.27.2022(3)
Chris Boettcher

Secretary




ORDINANCE NO. 4576-22

AN ORDINANCE LEVYING SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS FOR THE PURPOSE OF
CONSTRUCTING OR REPAIRING SIDEWALKS, CURBS AND GUTTERS, AND
DECLARING AN EMERGENCY. (Requires one reading.)

Department Requesting: Engineering Sponsor: Cledis Scott

WHEREAS, Council on December 7, 2021 adopted Resolution #2619-21 declaring it necessary
to construct or repair certain designated sidewalks, curbs and/or gutters and the notice of passage
of such Resolution was given to affected property owners as required by law; and

WHEREAS, the City of Urbana has subsequently constructed those designated sidewalks, curbs
and/or gutters along Eastview Drive, Seville Drive, Nova Drive, Long Bay Drive and Parview
Court in the City, where such were not constructed by the owners of the property abutting
thereon; and

WHEREAS, a list of the estimated assessments of the total cost of said construction has been
prepared, placed on file in the office of the clerk of the Urbana City Council and published as
required by law; and

WHEREAS, the Council has duly reviewed and considered all objections filed, if any, with
respect to said estimated assessments and has made such changes and corrections thereto as it
determines to be proper;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of Urbana, County of
Champaign and State of Ohio, a majority of the members of Council present concurring, that:

SECTION ONE:

That the list of estimated assessments of the cost of constructing certain sidewalks, curbs and/or
gutters along Eastview Drive, Seville Drive, Nova Drive, Long Bay Drive and Parview Court in
the City of Urbana, Ohio as provided for in Resolution #2619-21, heretofore reported to this
Council and now filed in the office of the clerk of the Urbana City Council, attached hereto as
Exhibit A, aggregating in the amount of $6,128.43, and the same hereby adopted and confirmed.

SECTION TWO:

That the amounts of the aforesaid assessments, subject to the conditions of Section 4 below, shall
hereby be assessed and levied upon the lots and lands abounding and abutting said
improvements.

SECTION THREE:




That it is hereby determined that aforesaid assessments do not exceed the special benefits
resulting from said improvements and do not exceed any statutory limitation.

SECTION FOUR:

That the number of properties, shown in Exhibit A, to be assessed may hereby be reduced upon
owner’s payment in cash to the Director of Finance of the City on or before September 9, 2022.

SECTION FIVE:

That the clerk of the Urbana City Council be and is hereby authorized and directed to continue
on file in his office a list of said assessments and the description of said lots and lands.

SECTION SIX:

That the total assessment against each lot and parcel of land shall be payable in cash to the
Director of Finance of the City on or before September 9, 2022, or the assessment, or the unpaid
balance thereof, shall be certified by the clerk of the Urbana City Council to the County Auditor
on or before September 12, 2022, to be placed by the Auditor on the respective tax duplicate and
collected in five (5) annual installments with interest thereon at 0% per annum at the same time
and in the same manner as other taxes are collected, as provided by law.

SECTION SEVEN:

That the clerk of the Urbana City Council is hereby authorized and directed to cause notice of
passage of this Ordinance to be published in the manner provided by law.

SECTION EIGHT:

All actions of City Council related to this legislation were conducted in open meetings pursuant
to Urbana Codified Ordinance 107.01 and Ohio Revised Code 121.22.

SECTION NINE:

This Ordinance is hereby declared an emergency measure as it relates to addressing public
health, safety and welfare and shall become effective immediately (September 6, 2022) upon its
passage.

President, City of Urbana Council
PASSED:

ATTEST:
Clerk of Council

This Ordinance approved by me this day of , 2022,




Mayor, City of Urbana

REVIEWED:
Director of Law Date

Jumper: _ Yay = Nay _ NA
Scott: __Yay __Nay __ N/A
Paul: __Yay _ Nay __ NA
Truelove: _ Yay _ Nay ___ N/A
Thackery: _ Yay _ Nay __ N/A
Collier: _ Yay __ Nay ___ N/A

Bean: Yay Nay N/A



Exhibit A - Eastview, Nova, Seville, Long Bay, Parview
2022 Sidewalk, Curb and Gutter Replacement Program (J8J Schlaegel, Inc.)

Address { Subject Property | Parcel Number Total Billed | Partial Payments
RESTO REINALDO & GONZALEZ-RESTO ROSA 160 EASTVIEW DR. URBANA OH 43078 160 EASTIVEW DR. K48-25-00-02-02-029-00 $1,826.95
HICKEY CARLJ & JUDITH L 271 EASTVIEW DR. URBANA OH 43078 271 EASTVIEW DR. K48-25-00-02-03-021-00 $201.95
|BLAIR BRANDON A & ROEHM ANGELA M 276 EASTVIEW DR. URBANA OH 43078 276 EASTVIEW DR. K48-25-00-02-03-019-00 $298.50
CAVANAUGH JOHN R & STACI L 289 EASTVIEW DR. URBANA OH 43078 289 EASTVIEW DR. K48-25-00-02-03-017-00 $505.45
STEINKE DEREK & KEARNS MOLLY J&S 228 NOVA DR. URBANA OH 43078 228 NOVA DR. K48-25-00-02-31-013-00 $125.40
HEIBERGER NATHAN & MICHELLE N 286 NOVA DR. URBANA OH 43078 286 NOVA DR. K48-25-00-02-03-016-00 $758.75
LACY TIMOTHY A & CARMEN M 347 SEVILLE DR. URBANA OH 43078 347 SEVILLE DR. K48-25-00-02-43-013-00 $245.23
HUELSKAMP DONALD P & ZIMMER KELLEY E 375 SEVILLE DR. URBANA OH 43078 375 SEVILLE DR. K48-25-00-02-43-016-00 $501.60
THURMAN BRYAN G & JORDAN D 173 LONG BAY DR. URBANA OH 43078 173 LONG BAY DR. K48-25-00-02-44-006-00 $343.85
FAIN TIMOTHY L & HEIDI M 515 WASHINGTON AVE. URBANA OH 43078 158 LONG BAY DR. K48-25-00-02-44-011-00 $144.25
STOCKER ANDREW 432 PARKWAY BLVD. URBANA OH 43078 432 PARKWAY BLVD K48-25-00-02-43-003-00 $1,176.50
Totals = $6,128.43 § -




ORDINANCE NO. 4577-22

AN ORDINANCE LEVYING SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS FOR THE PURPOSE OF
CONSTRUCTING OR REPAIRING SIDEWALKS, AND DECLARING AN
EMERGENCY. (Requires one reading.)

Department Requesting: Engineering Sponsor: Cledis Scott

WHEREAS, Council on January 4, 2022 adopted Resolution #2624-22 declaring it necessary to
construct or repair certain designated sidewalks and the notice of passage of such Resolution was
given to affected property owners as required by law; and

WHEREAS, the City of Urbana has subsequently constructed those designated sidewalks along
South Main Street and portions of North Main Street, East Court Street, East Church Street, East
Ward Street and Bloomfield Avenue in the City, where such were not constructed by the owners
of the property abutting thereon; and

WHEREAS, a list of the estimated assessments of the total cost of said construction has been
prepared, placed on file in the office of the clerk of the Urbana City Council and published as
required by law; and

WHEREAS, the Council has duly reviewed and considered all objections filed, if any, with
respect to said estimated assessments and has made such changes and corrections thereto as it
determines to be proper;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of Urbana, County of
Champaign and State of Ohio, a majority of the members of Council present concurring, that:

SECTION ONE:

That the list of estimated assessments of the cost of constructing certain sidewalks along South
Main Street and portions of North Main Street, East Court Street, East Church Street, East Ward
Street and Bloomfield Avenue in the City of Urbana, Ohio as provided for in Resolution #2624-
22, heretofore reported to this Council and now filed in the office of the clerk of the Urbana City
Council, attached hereto as Exhibit A, aggregating in the amount of $76,743.13, and the same
hereby adopted and confirmed.

SECTION TWO:

That the amounts of the aforesaid assessments, subject to the conditions of Section 4 below, shall
hereby be assessed and levied upon the lots and lands abounding and abutting said
improvements.



SECTION THREE:

That it is hereby determined that aforesaid assessments do not exceed the special benefits
resulting from said improvements and do not exceed any statutory limitation.

SECTION FOUR:

That the number of properties, shown in Exhibit A, to be assessed may hereby be reduced upon
owner’s payment in cash to the Director of Finance of the City on or before September 9, 2022.

SECTION FIVE:

That the clerk of the Urbana City Council be and is hereby authorized and directed to continue
on file in his office a list of said assessments and the description of said lots and lands.

SECTION SIX:

That the total assessment against each lot and parcel of land shall be payable in cash to the
Director of Finance of the City on or before September 9, 2022, or the assessment, or the unpaid
balance thereof, shall be certified by the clerk of the Urbana City Council to the County Auditor
on or before September 12, 2022, to be placed by the Auditor on the respective tax duplicate and
collected in five (5) annual installments with interest thereon at 0% per annum at the same time
and in the same manner as other taxes are collected, as provided by law.

SECTION SEVEN:

That the clerk of the Urbana City Council is hereby authorized and directed to cause notice of
passage of this Ordinance to be published in the manner provided by law.

SECTION EIGHT:

All actions of City Council related to this legislation were conducted in open meetings pursuant
to Urbana Codified Ordinance 107.01 and Ohio Revised Code 121.22.

SECTION NINE:

This Ordinance is hereby declared an emergency measure as it relates to addressing public
health, safety and welfare and shall become effective immediately (September 6, 2022) upon its
passage.

President, City of Urbana Council
PASSED:

ATTEST:
Clerk of Council




This Ordinance approved by me this day of ,2022.

Mayor, City of Urbana

REVIEWED:
Director of Law Date

Jumper: _Yay _ Nay _ NA
Scott: _ Yay __ Nay __ N/A
Paul:  Yay = Nay N./A
Truelove: _ Yay __ Nay ___ N/A
Thackery:  Yay = Nay __ N/A
Collier: _ Yay _ Nay ___N/A
Bean: _ Yay __ Nay __ N/A



Exhibit A - Main, Ward, Church, Court and Bloomfield

2022 Sidewalk Replacement Program (J&)J Schlaegel, Inc.)

Name Address City State Zip Subject Property Parcel Number Total Billed Partial Payments |
Shawn Horton 1029 S. Main Street Urbana OH 43078 1029 S. Main Street K48-25-11-02-29-005-00 $445.45
Kenneth & Karen Wooten PO Box 2301 Springfield OH 45501 1001 S. Main Street K48-25-11-02-25-002-00 5$474.00
Brian Williams 927 S. Main Street Urbana OH 43078 927 S. Main Street K48-25-00-02-11-012-00 $609.00
Gary & Jeannie Beatty 1520 St. Rt 55 7 Urbana OH 43078 913 S. Main Street K48-25-00-02-11-009-00 $5,453.63
Streamline Design & Print LLC R 223 N, Main Street Urbana OH 43078-1603 871 S. Main Street K48-25-00-02-25-023-00 _ $1,605.00
Nicole Nawman 2535 Deming Avenue Columbus OH 43202 835 S. Main Street K48-25-00-02-25-017-00 $860.00
Hayley Woodward 817 5. Main Street Urbana OH 43078 817 S. Main Street K48-25-00-02-25-012-00 $580.00
John Howell Sr. 337 Windsro Ave. Urbana OH 43078 705 S. Main Street K48-25-00-02-25-008-00 $790.80
Joyce & Barnaby Ofori 707 S. Main Street Urbana OH 43078 707 S. Main Street K48-25-00-02-25-010-00 $1,620.00
Stefan Haggard & Sarah Smith 703 S. Main Street ~ Urbana ~OH 43078 703 S. Main Street K48-25-00-02-25-008-00 |  $1,43150|
Kevin & Christopher Dillon 203 East Lawn Ave.??? Urbana OH 43078 647 S. Main Street K48-25-00-02-25-007-00 $522.00
Jonathan & Allison Lough 6315, Main Street Urbana OH 43078 631 S. Main Street K48-25-00-02-25-004-00 $290.00
Justin & Aubree Chappelear 569 S. Main Street Urbana OH 43078 569 S. Main Street K48-25-11-02-30-025-00 $261.00

53 N. Mutual Union Road Urbana OH 43078 533 S. Main Street = K48-25-00-02-24-013-00 _$290.00 b

Timothy Staley 527 S. Main Street Urbana OH 43078 527 S. Main Street K48-25-00-02-24-012-00 $522.00
Kelli Wright 523 S. Main Street Urbana OH 43078 523 S. Main Street K48-25-00-02-24-011-00 $838.50
Colter & Victoria Hurley 449 S. Main Street Urbana OH 43078 448 S. Main Street K48-25-00-02-24-006-00 $696.00 [
Daniel Flory ~ 405S. Main Street Urbana OH 43078 405 S. Main Street ~ Kk48-25-00-02-23-003-00 $1,502.30 -
Jerald & Chloe Boyd 401 S. Main Street Urbana OH 43078 401 S. Main Street K48-25-00-02-23-004-00 $2,575.48
Aaron & Samantha Hiltabran 333 S. Main Street Urbana OH 43078 333 S. Main Street K48-25-00-02-18-002-00 $1,670.00
Nancy Rhea 3315. Main Street Urbana OH 43078 331 S. Main Street K48-25-00-02-15-001-00 $330.50
Henderson Properties LLC 6911 W. US Highway 36 Urbana OH 43078 319 S. Main Street K48-25-00-02-18-158-00 $1,661.50
Mildred Frazier 313 S. Main Street Urbana OH 43078 313 5. Main Street K48-25-00-02-18-159-00 $754.60
Donald Page 1715 N. Main Street Urbana OH 43078 1006 S. Main Street K48-25-00-01-20-042-00 $662.00
Kevin & Lindsay Taylor 912 S. Main Street Urbana OH 43078 912 S. Main Street K48-25-00-01-06-003-00 $319.00
John & Ashley Emmons 850 . Main Street - Urbana OH 43078  B50S. Main Street K48-25-00-01-17-003-00 o %$31351) 0 B
Pandin Company LLC PO Box 39 Mechanicsburg OH 43078 806 S. Main Street K48-25-00-01-21-003-00 $884.00 B
Terry & Laura McKee 630 S. Main Street Urbana ~ OH 43078 630 S. Main Street K48-25-00-01-07-005-00 ~$290.00
Seth Kolarsky 628 S. Main Street Urbana OH 43078 628 S. Main Street K48-25-00-01-07-004-00 $290.00
William & Vicki Brown 6097 State Route 161 Mechanicsburg OH 43044 618 S. Main Street K48-25-00-01-07-003-00 $580.00
Martin Marsha J 619 S. Main Street Urbana OH 43078 619 S. Main Street K48-25-00-02-25-001-00 $580.00
Julie Smith 546 S. Main Street Urbana OH 43078 546 S. Main Steet K48-25-00-01-25-014-00 $555.00
Tristin Pankhurst 530 S. Main Street Urbana OH 43078 530 S. Main Street K48-25-00-01-25-011-00 $812.00
Jana Riegel 506 S. Main Street Urbana OH 43078 506 S. Main Street K48-25-00-01-25-004-00 $232.00 —
Shannon & James Rowe 442 S. Main Street Urbana OH 43078 442 S, Main Street K48-25-11-01-31-001-00 $1,636.60
Shannon Bowsher 436 S. Main Street Urbana OH 43078 436 S. Main Street K48-25-11-01-31-002-00 $1,192.40
William Brown 6097 State Route 161 Mechanicsburg OH 43044 430 S. Main Street K48-25-11-01-31-003-00 $788.90
Chad & Kymberlyn Fannin 414 S. Main Street Urbana OH 43078 414 S. Main Street K48-25-00-01-14-004-00 $813.20
Janet Watkins L/C John & Jeanne Burdette 410 S. Main Street Urbana OH 43078 410 S. Main Street K48-25-00-01-14-005-00 $1,197.40
Tara McCoy 408 S. Main Street Urbana OH 43078 408 S. Main Street K48-25-00-01-14-006-00 $409.10
Chris Gravitt 402 S. Main Street Urbana OH 43078 402 S. Main Street K48-25-00-01-14-008-00 $1,803.60
Paul Dwayne Caryl-Ropp 53 N. Mutual Union Road Urbana OH 43078 320 S. Main Street K48-25-00-01-16-103-00 $287.50
Matthew & Adena Partin 314 S. Main Street Urbana OH 43078 314 S. Main Street K48-25-00-01-16-100-00 $1,970.60 el
Phil & Teresa Wilson 304 S. Main Street Urbana OH 43078 304 S. Main Street K48-25-00-01-16-098-00 $2,733.80
R&R Takhar LLC 7030 Poe Ave. Urbana SO E 43078 230 S. Main Street _K48-25-00-01-16-055-00 _$2,470.60 | =
Urbana Post Office 200 S. Main St. Urbana OH 43078 200 S. Main Street K48-25-00-01-16-049-00 $2,018.80
Jennifer Trimble 400 N. Main Street Urbana OH 43078 104 W. Ward Street K48-25-11-04-33-018-00 5381.60




Exhibit A - Main, Ward, Church, Court and Bloomfield
2022 Sidewalk Replacement Program (J&J Schlaegel, Inc.)

Address ‘ , ' Subject Property ParcelNumber. |/ Total Billed" | Partial Payments.|
Jon Gibson 406 N, Main Street Urbana OH 43078 406 N. Main Street K48-25-11-04-33-020-00 $687.75
Larry & Heba Downs 420 N. Main Street Urbana OH 43078 420 N. Main Street K48-25-11-04-34-021-00 $1,178.60
Zachary Burt 426 N. Main Street Urbana OH 43078 426 N. Main Street K48-25-11-04-34-023-00 $873.00
James & Stacy Haggy 432 N. Main Street Urbana Lol 43078 432 N. Main Street K48-25-11-04-34-025-00 $943.90 il
Bruce & Debra Woods 429 N. Main Street Urbana OH 43078 429 N. Main Street K48-25-00-03-07-033-00 $2,361.40
Randy & Teresa Leopard 106 Camelot Drive Urbana OH 43078 325 N. Main Street K48-25-00-03-19-168-00 $1,412.85
Pamela Stairwalt 2693 W. State Rt. 29 Urbana OH 43078 331 N. Main Street K48-25-00-03-19-169-00 $876.38
Gretchen Bonasera 2966 Donnylane Blvd. Columbus OH 43235 319 N. Main Street K48-25-00-03-19-173-00 $424.00
Paul Dwayne Caryl-Ropp 53 N. Mutual Union Road Urbana OH 43078 241 N. Main Street K48-25-00-03-19-113-00 $3,017.90
Paul Dwayne Caryl-Ropp 53 N, Mutual Union Road Urbana OH 43078 231 N. Main Street K48-25-00-03-19-115-00 $344.50
Mark Bloemhard 207 N. Main Street Urbana OH 43078 207 N. Main Street K48-25-00-03-19-124-00 %7700
David Brown 4831 State Route 55 Urbana OH 43078 109 E. Church Street K48-25-00-03-19-112-00 $1,320.98
James E. Malone Sr. 237 E. Ward St. Urbana OH 43078 237 E. Ward Street K48-25-00-03-19-153-00 $13,530.00
James C Morris 123 Bloomfield Ave. Urbana OH 43078 123 Bloomfield Avenue K48-25-00-03-21-023-00 $290.00

Totals = $76,743.13 -




ORDINANCE NO. 4578-22

AN ORDINANCE LEVYING SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS FOR THE PURPOSE OF
CONSTRUCTING OR REPAIRING CURBS, GUTTERS, DRIVEWAY APPROACHES
AND APPURTENANCES THERETO ON A SECTION OF SOUTH MAIN STREET
BETWEEN STATE ROUTE 55 AND MARKET STREET AND ON A SECTION OF
NORTH MAIN STREET BETWEEN COURT STREET AND WASHINGTON
AVENUE/GWYNNE STREET, AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY. (Requires one
reading.)

Department Requesting: Engineering Sponsor: Cledis Scott

WHEREAS, Council on February 1, 2022 adopted Resolution #2627-22 declaring it necessary
to construct or repair curbs, gutters, driveway approaches and appurtenances thereto and the
notice of passage of such Resolution was given to affected property owners as required by law;
and

WHEREAS, the City of Urbana has subsequently constructed those improvements along South
Main Street between State Route 55 and Market Street and along North Main Street between
Court Street and Washington Avenue/Gwynne Street; and

WHEREAS, a list of the assessments of the total cost of said construction has been prepared and
placed on file in the office of the clerk of the Urbana City Council; and

WHEREAS, the Council has duly reviewed and considered all objections filed under Ohio
Revised Code Section 727.15, if any, with respect to said assessments and has made such
changes and corrections thereto as it determines to be proper;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of Urbana, County of
Champaign and State of Ohio, a majority of the members of Council present concurring, that:

SECTION ONE:

That the list of assessments of the cost of constructing curbs, gutters, driveway approaches and
appurtenances thereto along South Main Street between State Route 55 and Market Street and
along North Main Street between Court Street and Washington Avenue/Gwynne Street in the
City of Urbana, Ohio as provided for in Resolution #2627-22 and Ordinance #4567-22,
heretofore reported to this Council and now filed in the office of the clerk of the Urbana City
Council, attached hereto as Exhibit A, aggregating in the amount of $374,644.18, and the same
hereby adopted and confirmed.



SECTION TWO:

That the amounts of the aforesaid assessments, subject to the conditions of Section 4 below, shall
hereby be assessed and levied upon the lots and lands abounding and abutting said
improvements.

SECTION THREE:

That it is hereby determined that aforesaid assessments do not exceed the special benefits
resulting from said improvements and do not exceed any statutory limitation.

SECTION FOUR:

That the number of properties, shown in Exhibit A, to be assessed may hereby be reduced upon
owner’s payment in cash to the Director of Finance of the City on or before September 9, 2022.

SECTION FIVE:

That the clerk of the Urbana City Council be and is hereby authorized and directed to continue
on file in his office a list of said assessments and the description of said lots and lands.

SECTION SIX:

That the total assessment against each lot and parcel of land shall be payable in cash to the
Director of Finance of the City on or before September 9, 2022, or the assessment, or the unpaid
balance thereof, shall be certified by the clerk of the Urbana City Council to the County Auditor
on or before September 12, 2022, to be placed by the Auditor on the respective tax duplicate and
collected in five (5) annual installments with interest thereon at 0% per annum at the same time
and in the same manner as other taxes are collected, as provided by law.

SECTION SEVEN:

That the clerk of the Urbana City Council is hereby authorized and directed to cause notice of
passage of this Ordinance to be published in the manner provided by law.

SECTION EIGHT:

All actions of City Council related to this legislation were conducted in open meetings pursuant
to Urbana Codified Ordinance 107.01 and Ohio Revised Code 121.22.

SECTION NINE:

This Ordinance is hereby declared an emergency measure as it relates to addressing public
health, safety and welfare and shall become effective immediately (September 6, 2022) upon its
passage.



President, City of Urbana Council

PASSED:
ATTEST:
Clerk of Council

This Ordinance approved by me this  day of ,2022.
Mayor, City of Urbana

REVIEWED:

Director of Law Date

Jumper: _ Yay _ Nay __ N/A

Scott: _ Yay _ Nay __ N/A

Paul: _Yay _ Nay _ NA

Truelove: _ Yay _ Nay __ N/A

Thackery: __Yay _ Nay _ _N/A

Collier: _ Yay __ Nay __ NA

Bean: __Yay _ Nay __ N/A



Exhibit A - South and North Main Curb & Gutter

2022 Sidewalk, Curb and Gutter Replacement Program (D.L. Smith Concrete) Updated: 9/2/2022
Name Address City State Zip Subject Property Parcel Number Total Billed Partial Payments
ANNA KARG 1715 N MAIN ST URBANA OHIO 43078 1006 S MAIN ST K48-25-00-01-20-042-00 51,672.48
ANDREA SORRELL 4451 W HWY 36 URBANA OHIO 43078 1010 S MAIN ST K48-25-00-01-20-043-00 $2,336.57
KELSEY & SHANE BLACK 1020 S MAIN ST URBANA CHIO 43078 1020 S MAIN ST K48-25-00-01-20-044-00 $2,495.04
CHAD TROYER B 1014 S MAIN ST URBANA OHIO 43078 1014 5 MAIN ST K48-25-00-01-20-045-00 $6,086.90
MIKE KARNS 1022 S MAIN ST URBANA OHIO 43078 1022 S MAIN ST K48-25-00-01-20-046-00 $2,349.83
SLESINGER RICH MARY KAY 4338 EVERETT RD URBANA CHIO 43078 S MAIN ST K48-25-00-01-20-047-00 $3,203.78
KENNETH & KAREN WOOTEN PO BOX 2301 SPRINGFIELD OHIO 45501 1001 S MAIN ST K48-25-11-02-29-002-00 $3,108.01
ROGER & ELIZABETH BOWSHIER 1013 S MAIN ST URBANA OHIO 43078 1013 S MAIN ST K48-25-11-02-29-003-00 $2,881.82
BENJAMIN & AMANDA HOSKINSON 1021 S MAIN 5T URBANA OHIO 43078 1021 S MAIN ST K48-25-11-02-29-004-00 $3,523.75
SHAWN & JESSICA HORTON 1029 S MAIN ST URBANA OHIO 43078 1029 S MAIN ST K48-25-11-02-29-005-00 $3,491.79
SHARON POTTS 1035 S MAIN ST URBANA OHIO 43078 1035 S MAIN ST K48-25-11-02-29-006-00 $2,710.46
KEVIN DERR PO BOX 535 URBANA OHIO 43078 1039 S MAIN ST K48-25-11-02-29-007-00 $2,565.07
LARRY & DORIS BURTON 1049 S MAIN ST URBANA OHIO 43078 1049 S MAIN ST K48-25-11-02-29-008-00 $3,510.65
VIRGINIA BARRON 739 LILLEY AVE COLUMBUS OHIO 43205 1059 S MAIN ST K48-25-11-02-29-021-00 $1,571.92
RICHARD GORDON & KIMBERLY BROOKS 904 S MAIN ST URBANA OHIO 43078 904 S MAIN ST K48-25-00-01-06-001-00 $2,070.36
LINDSAY & KEVIN TAYLOR 912 S MAIN ST URBANA OHIO 43078 912 S MAIN ST K48-25-00-01-06-003-00 $5,513.69
JOHN & BRITTANY BUENA 922 S MAIN STREET URBANA OHIO 43078 922 S MAIN ST K48-25-00-01-06-005-00 $2,308.92
GARY & JEANNIE BEATTY 1520 W ST RTE 55 URBANA OHIO 43078 913 S MAIN ST K48-25-00-02-11-005-00 $5,415.94
BRIAN WILLIAMS 927 S MAIN ST URBANA OHIO 43078 927 S MAIN ST K48-25-00-02-11-012-00 $2,245.16
BRAD & SHANAE WATKINS 931 S MAIN ST URBANA OHIO 43078 9315 MAIN ST K48-25-00-02-11-013-00 $1,915.98
EMILY BOWERS & JOSEPH BLOSSER 937 S MAIN ST URBANA QOHIO 43078-2535 937 S MAIN ST K48-25-00-02-11-014-00 $2,041.13
KENNETH & KIMBERLY NEWMAN 845 S MAIN ST URBANA QOHIO 43078 945 S MAIN ST K48-25-00-02-11-015-00 $2,008.21
JERALD BOYD I 862 S MAIN STREET URBANA OHIO 43078 862 S MAIN ST K48-25-00-01-01-001-00 $2,482.62
ANDREW & CATHY MOSES 864 S MAIN ST URBANA ~ OHIO 43078 864 5 MAIN ST 48-25-00-01-01-002-00 ~ $2,518.57
NICHOLAS & STACY CHRISTIAN 876 S MAIN ST URBANA OHIO 43078 876 S MAIN ST K4B-25-00-01-01-004-00 $3,164.97 S 664.97
JOHN & ASHLEY EMMONS 850 S MAIN ST ~ URBANA OHIO 43078 850 S MAIN ST K48-25-00-01-17-003-00 53,911.94
GLADYS & JONATHAN COLLINS 840 S MAIN ST URBANA OHIO 43078 840 S MAIN ST K48-25-00-01-17-004-00 $2,940.42
WILLIAM BROWN 6097 ST RT 161 MECHANICSBURG OHIO 43044 838 S MAIN ST K48-25-00-01-17-005-00 52._515.28
BRYAN COX 820 S MAIN ST URBANA OHIO 43078 820 S MAIN ST K48-25-00-01-17-007-00 $3,051.80
TY & RUTH CRAMER 818 S MAIN ST URBANA OHIO 43078 818 S MAIN ST K48-25-00-01-21-001-00 $2,115.40
DOROTHY BEATTY 872 EICHELBERGER DR URBANA OHIO 43078 812 S MAIN ST K48-25-00-01-21-002-00 $3,513.25
PANDIN COMPANY LLC PO BOX 39 MECHANICSBURG QHIO 43044 806 S MAIN ST K48-25-00-01-21-003-00 $3,708.75
ROBERT & LORI TAVENNER 802 S MAIN ST URBANA OHIO 43078 802 5 MAIN ST K48-25-00-01-21-004-00 $2,456.92
HALEY WOODWARD 817 S MAIN ST URBANA OHIO 43078 817 S MAIN ST K48-25-00-02-25-012-00 $2,204.08
SUSAN OELKER 2399 N US HWY 68 URBANA OHIO 43078-9537 8215 MAIN ST _ K48-25-00-02-25-013-00 51,821.98
CHAD SOUDERS & KRISTINA WOITASZEK 823 S MAIN ST URBANA OHIO 43078 823 S MAIN ST K48-25-00-02-25-014-00 $1,762.00
TERRI THOMPSON & KAILEY SCHETTER 221 W CHURCH ST URBANA OHIO 43078 827 S MAIN ST K48-25-00-02-25-015-00 $2,734.14
DANIEL VANDYKE 833 S MAIN ST URBANA OHIO 43078 833 S MAIN ST K48-25-00-02-25-016-00 $2,158.79
JUSTIN & NICOLE NAWMAN 835 S MAIN ST URBANA OHIO 43078 835 S MAIN ST K48-25-00-02-25-017-00 $2,981.48
TERRY ADAMS 837 S MAIN ST URBANA OHIO 43078 837 S MAIN ST K48-25-00-02-25-018-00 $2,850.08
SHIRLEY WDODS 855 S MAIN ST URBANA OHIO 43078 855 S MAIN ST K48-25-00-02-25-020-00 $2,905.14
JERALD BOYD It 862 S MAIN ST URBANA OHIO 43078 8615 MAIN ST K48-25-00-02-25-021-00 $2,882.48
19TH HOLE PROPERTIES LLC 865 S MAIN ST URBANA OHIO 43078 8655 MAIN ST K48-25-00-02-25-022-00 $3,476.02
STREAMLINE DESIGN & PRINT LLC 223 N MAIN ST URBANA QOHIO 43078 8715 MAIN ST K48-25-00-02-25-023-00 $9,409.11
DAVID SULLENBERGER 734 S MAIN ST URBANA OHIO 43078 734 S MAIN ST K48-25-00-01-08-001-00 $2,347.56
KURTIS BUMP 730 S MAIN ST URBANA OHIO 43078 730 S MAIN ST K48-25-00-01-08-002-00 $2,032.00
TINA BLAKEMAN 724 S MAIN ST URBANA OHIO 43078 724 S MAIN ST K48-25-00-01-08-003-00 $3,442.59
BANK CHAMP NATL AND TRUST TRUSTEE 601 SCIOTO ST URBANA OHIC 43078 720 S MAIN ST K48-25-00-01-08-005-00 $2,804.57
JANICE MEYER 714 S MAIN ST URBANA OHIO 43078 714 S MAIN ST K48-25-00-01-08-007-00 $2,020.65




Exhibit A - South and North Main Curb & Gutter

2022 Sidewalk, Curb and Gutter Replacement Program (D.L. Smith Concrete)

Updated:

9/2/2022

Address Subject Property Parcel Number Total Billed Partial Payments
LISA WILLIAMSON 708 S MAIN ST URBANA OHID 43078 708 S MAIN ST K48-25-00-01-08-008-00 $3,064.06
KENT EDWARD MILLER 4300 FOXBOROUGH TRAIL ARLINGTON TEXAS 76001 702 S MAIN ST K48-25-00-01-08-009-00 $2,510.08
STEFAN HAGGARD & SARAH SMITH 703 S MAIN ST ~ URBANA OHIO 43078 703 S MAIN ST K48-25-00-02-25-008-00 $2,971.92
JOHN HOWELL SR 337 WINDSOR AVE URBANA OHIO 43078 705 S MAIN ST K48-25-00-02-25-009-00 $2,624.94
BARNABY & JOYCE OFORI 707 S MAIN ST URBANA OHIO 43078 707 S MAIN ST K48-25-00-02-25-010-00 $2,927.73
LEGACY PLACE URBANA LP 12821 E NEW MARKET STSTE200  CARMEL INDIANA 46032 7255 MAIN ST K48-25-00-02-25-011-00 $11,180.92
ARTHUR & LAURA WEISENBARGER 610 5 MAIN ST URBANA OHIO 43078 610 S MAIN ST KA8-25-00-01-07-001-00 $1,563.44
WILLIAM & VICKI BROWN 6097 ST RTE 161 MECHANICSBURG OHIO 43044 618 S MAIN ST K48-25-00-01-07-003-00 $1,827.90
SETH KOLARSKY 6285 MAIN ST URBANA OHIO 43078 6285 MAIN ST K48-25-00-01-07-004-00 $1,891.38
TERRY & LAURA MCKEE 630 S MAIN ST URBANA OHIO 43078 630 S MAIN ST K48-25-00-01-07-005-00 $1,587.63
WALTER & LEWIS FUNERAL HOME 642 S MAIN ST URBANA OHIO 43078 642 S MAIN ST K48-25-00-01-07-009-00 $7,721.87 o
MARSHA MARTIN 5195 MAIN ST URBANA OHIO 43078 6195 MAIN ST K4925000225-001:00 $2,385.79
ALLISON & JOHNATHON LOUGH 631 S MAIN ST URBANA OHIO 43078 6315 MAIN ST ¥48-25-00-02-25-004-00 $3,007.92
MICHAEL STUDER 635 5 MAIN ST URBANA OHIO 43078 635 S MAIN ST K48-25-00-02-25-005-00 $1,998.25
CHRISTOPHER & KEVIN DILLON 4747 SWISHER RD CABLE OHIO 43009 647 S MAIN ST K48-25-00-02-25-007-00 $2,032.00
COLVIN LYDIA R 1200 WILLOW RD SPRINGFIELD OHIO 45502 609'S MAIN ST K48-25-11-02-30-023-00 $3,301.80
RONALD & MELANIE QUESENBERRY 605 S MAIN ST URBANA OHIO 43078 605 S MAIN ST K48-25-11-02-30-024-00 $3,467.74
JANA RIEGEL 506 S MAIN ST URBANA OHIO 43078 5065 MAIN ST K48-25-00-01-25-004-00 $1,997.98
LACRETA SCHNACK 516 S MAIN STREET URBANA OHIO 43078 516 S MAIN ST K48-25-00-01-25-006-00 $2,364.73
CHARLES & KATHY TAYLOR 522 5 MAIN 5T URBANA QHID 43078 522 5 MAIN ST K48-25-00-01-25-009-00 $3,648.82
TRISTIN PANKHURST 530 S MAIN ST URBANA OHIO 43078 530 S MAIN ST Ka8-25-00-01-25-011-00 $2,349.73
RALPH HENIZE 538 5 MAIN ST URBANA OHIO 43078 538 S MAIN ST K48-25-00-01-25-013-00 $2,264.44
JULIE SMITH 546 5 MAIN ST URBANA OHIO 43078 546 S MAIN ST K48-25-00-01-25-014-00 $1,786.50
GABRIELLE LOGAN 507 5 MAIN ST URBANA OHIO 43078 507 5 MAIN ST K48-25-00-02-24-008-00 $1,855.80
DAVID & DAWANA LAASE 513 S MAIN ST URBANA OHIO 43078 513 S MAIN ST K48-25-00-02-24-009-00 $2,981.74 -
ALEXIS CARDOSA 517 § MAIN ST URBANA OHIO 43078 517 5 MAIN ST K48-25-00-02-24-010-00 $2,628.00
KELLI WRIGHT 523 S MAIN ST URBANA OHIO 43078 523 S MAIN ST K48-25-00-02-24-011-00 $3,676.45
TIMOTHY EUGENE STALEY 527 5 MAIN ST URBANA OHIO 43078 527 5 MAIN ST K48-25-00-02-24-012-00 $2,520.39
CARYL PAUL DWAYNE 53 N MUTUAL UNION RD CABLE OHIO 43009 533 5 MAIN ST K48-25-00-02-24-013-00 $2,531.74
JUSTIN & AUBREE CHAPPELEAR 569 5 MAIN ST URBANA OHIO 43078 569 S MAIN ST K48-25-11-02-30-025-00 $5,814.42
DAVID & SUSAN OELKER 2399 N US HWY 68 URBANA OHIO 43078 428 S MAIN ST K48-25-00-01-14-001-00 $1,924.53
TRIPLE W PROPERTIES LLC PO BOX 792 BELLEFONTAINE OHIO 43311 422 5 MAIN ST K48-25-00-01-14-002-00 $1,718.28 A
RYAN WALTZ 3871 ORANGE BLOSSOM LN COLUMBUS OHIO 43230 418 5 MAIN ST K48-25-00-01-14-003-00 $1,710.94
CHAD & KYMBERLYN FANNIN 414 5 MAIN ST URBANA OHIO 43078 414 5 MAIN ST K48-25-00-01-14-004-00 $1,725.94
JANET WATKINS L/C JOHN & JEANNE BURDETTE 410 S MAIN ST URBANA OHIO 43078 410 S MAIN ST K48-25-00-01-14-005-00 $1,694.07
TARA MCCOY 408 5 MAIN ST URBANA OHIO 43078 408 5 MAIN ST K48-25-00-01-14-006-00 $1,733.28
CHRIS GRAVITT & AMY WARNER 402 5 MAIN ST URBANA OHIO 43078 402 S MAIN ST K48-25-00-01-14-008-00 $2,395.44
JOSEPH SMITH 207 LAFAYETTE AVE URBANA OHIO 43078 4155 MAIN ST K48-25-00-02-23-001-00 $3,780.10
JOSEPH SMITH 207 LAFAYETTE AVE URBANA OHIO 43078 413 S MAIN ST K48-25-00-02-23-002-00 $3,460.22
DANIEL FLORY 405 5 MAIN ST URBANA OHIO 43078 405 S MAIN ST K48-25-00-02-23-003-00 $1,803.13
JERALD & CHLOE BOYD 401 5 MAIN ST URBANA OHID 43078-2401 4015 MAIN ST K48-25-00-02-23-004-00 $2,186.92
THOMAS FITZGIBBON 2905 RIVER EDGE CIRCLE SPRING VALLEY OHIO 45370 425 S MAIN ST K48-25-00-02-24-001-00 $3,225.72
TERRELL & AMANDA BROWNING 433 S MAIN ST URBANA OHIO 43078 433 S MAIN ST K48-25-00-02-24-002-00 $3,231.13
MARIANNE MONEY & JIMMY MONROE 445 5 MAIN ST URBANA OHIO 43078 445 S MAIN ST K48-25-00-02-24-005-00 $2,659.08
COLTER & VICTORIA HURLEY 449 S MAIN URBANA OHIO 43078 449 5 MAIN ST K48-25-00-02-24-006-00 $1,966.23
SHANNON & JAMES ROWE 442 5 MAIN ST URBANA OHIO 43078 442 5 MAIN ST K48-25-11-01-31-001-00 $2,002.00
SHANNON BOWSHER 436 S MAIN ST URBANA OHIO 43078 436 S MAIN ST K48-25-11-01-31-002-00 $2,698.26
WILLIAM & VICKI BROWN 5097 ST RT 161 MECHANICSBURG OHIO 43044 430 S MAIN ST K48-25-11-01-31-003-00 $3,391.00
CHARLES & BARBARA PATRICK 18 HEATHER BND URBANA OHIO 43078-2273 301 S MAIN ST K48-25-00-02-18-115-00 $3,066.84




Exhibit A - South and North Main Curb & Gutter

2022 Sidewalk, Curb and Gutter Replacement Program (D.L. Smith Concrete) Updated: 9/2/2022
Address Subject Property Parcel Number Total Billed Partial Payments
HENDERSON X 4 PROPERTIES LLC PO BOX 820 ST. PARIS OHIO 43072 319 S MAIN ST K48-25-00-02-18-158-00 $1,750.65
MILDRED FRAZIER 313 S MAIN ST URBANA OHIO 43078 313 S MAIN ST K48-25-00-02-18-159-00 $2,196.21
NANCY RHEA 331 S MAIN ST URBANA OHIO 43078 331 S MAIN ST K48-25-00-02-19-001-00 $2,166.21
AARON & SAMANTHA HILTIBRAN 333 S MAIN ST URBANA OHIO 43078 333 S MAIN ST K48-25-00-02-19-002-00 $1,984.73
ROY & TERESA WILSON 304 5 MAIN ST URBANA OHIO 43078 304 S MAIN ST K48-25-00-01-16-098-00 $4,532.03
MATTHEW PARTIN |1 314 S MAIN ST URBANA OHIO 43078 314 S MAIN ST K48-25-00-01-16-100-00 $2,278.36
CARYL-ROPP PAUL DWAYNE 53 N MUTUAL UNION RD CABLE OHIO 43009 320 S MAIN ST K48-25-00-01-16-103-00 $2,108.61
MATTHEW CRAIG 324 S MAIN ST URBANA OHIO 43078 324 S MAIN ST K48-25-00-01-16-105-00 $1,762.00
URBANA POST OFFICE 200 S MAIN ST URBANA OHIO 43078 200 S MAIN ST K48-25-00-01-16-045-00 $4,227.40
GRANDWORKS FOUNDATION PO Box 38113 URBANA OHIO 43078 216 S MAIN ST K48-25-00-01-16-050-00 _ $1,872.50
R & R TAKHAR LLC 7030 POE AVE UNIT A DAYTON OHIO 45414-2591 222 S MAIN ST 4 an-zs-oo—m~1&—05‘g{t’:__ $11,384.44
COBER PROPERTIES 114 1/2 SCIOTO ST URBANA OHIO 43078 431 N MAIN ST K48-25-00-03-07-032-00 $1,909.08
BRUCE & DEBRA WOODS 429 N MAIN ST URBANA OHIO 43078 429 N MAIN ST K48-25-00-03-07-033-00 $2,574.00
FIRST BAPTIST CHURCH 401 N MAIN ST URBANA OHIO 43078 401 N MAIN ST K48-25-11-03-37-076-00 $4,589.29
JENNIFER TRIMBLE 528 N MAIN ST URBANA OHIO 43078 104 W WARD ST K48-25-11-04-33-018-00 $2,442.00
JON GIBSON 406 N MAIN STREET URBANA OHIO 43078 406 N MAIN ST K48-25-11-04-33-020-00 $3,001.50
JENNIFER LIU 3330 CLAYDOR DR DAYTON OHIO 45431 412 N MAIN ST K48-25-11-04-33-021-00 $2,450.32
AMERICAN LEGION INC 414 N MAIN ST URBANA OHIO 43078 414 N MAIN ST K48-25-11-04-34-019-00 $3,266.00
LARRY & HEBA DOWNS 420 N MAIN ST URBANA OHIO 43078 420 N MAIN ST K48-25-11-04-34-021-00 $3,687.00
ZACHARY BURT & ADRIANNA MARTIN 426 N MAIN ST URBANA QOHIO 43078 426 N MAIN ST ¥48-25-11-04-34-023-00 $2,246.52
HAGGY JAMES & STACY 432 N MAIN ST URBANA OHIO 43078 432 N MAIN ST K48-25-11-04-34-025-00 $3,740.38
RANDY & TERESA LEOPARD 106 CAMELOT DR URBANA OHIO 43078 325 N MAINST K48-25-00-03-19-168-00 $1,816.00 —
STAIRWALT PAMELA K 2693 W ST RTE 29 URBANA OHIO 43078 331 N MAIN ST K48-25-00-03-19-169-00 $3,828.50
GRETCHEN BONASERA 4200 MACDUFF WAY DUBLIN CHIO 43016 321 N MAIN ST K48-25-00-03-19-170-00 $636.50
GRETCHEN BONASERA 4200 MACDUFF WAY DUBLIN OHIO 43016 319 N MAIN ST K48-25-00-03-19-173-00 $1,347.00
FOUR GABLES LLC 3160 DIALTON RD ST. PARIS OHIO 43072 300 N MAIN ST K48-25-00-04-19-096-00 $2,631.50
TRAVIS & KATHERYN BRENTLINGER 316 N MAIN ST URBANA OHIO 43078 316 & 318 N MAIN ST K48-25-00-04-19-097-00 $257.00
MERLE & KITTIE K TROUTWINE TRUST 369 CAMELOT DR URBANA OHIO 43078 324 N MAIN ST K48-25-00-04-19-100-00 $4,270.50
CARYL-ROPP PAUL DWAYNE 53 N MUTUAL UNION RD CABLE QHIO 43009 241 N MAIN ST K48-25-00-03-19-113-00 $1,135.50
DAVID & KIMBERLY BROWN 4831 ST RT 55 URBANA OHIO 43078 237 N MAIN ST K48-25-00-03-19-114-00 - $818.00
CARYL ROPP PAUL DWAYNE 53 N MUTUAL UNION RD CABLE OHIO 43009 231 N MAIN ST K48-25-00-03-19-115-00 e $563.00
SCOTT & JULIE FANNIN 3850 STATE ROUTE 55 URBANA OHIO  43078-9611 215 N MAIN ST K48-25-00-03-19-123-00 $3,018.00 -
MARK & BETHANY BLOEMHARD 207 N MAIN ST URBANA OHIO 43078 207 N MAIN ST K48-25-00-03-19-124-00 $771.00
URBANA MASONIC TEMPLE ASSOC 222 N MAIN ST URBANA OHIO 43078 222 N MAIN ST K48-25-00-04-19-067-00 $4,442.00
Totals = $375,309.15 $ 664.97
Total Remaining = $374,644.18



